
#coopscrutiny

CO-OPERATIVE SCRUTINY BOARD

Wednesday 23 December 2015
4.00 pm
Council House (Next to the Civic Centre)

Members:
Councillor  James, Chair
Councillor Mrs Aspinall, Vice Chair.
Councillors Mrs Beer, Bowie, Mrs Bowyer, Sam Davey, Hendy (substitute for Councillor Mrs 
Murphy), Jordan, Ricketts, Storer and Kate Taylor.

Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf.

This meeting will be broadcast live to the internet and will be capable of subsequent repeated 
viewing.  By entering the Warspite Room and during the course of the meeting, Councillors are 
consenting to being filmed and to the use of those recordings for webcasting.

The Council is a data controller under the Data Protection Act.  Data collected during this 
webcast will be retained in accordance with authority’s published policy.

For further information on attending Council meetings and how to engage in the democratic 
process please follow this link - http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/accesstomeetings

Tracey Lee
Chief Executive

Democratic Support
Plymouth City Council
Ballard House
West Hoe Road
Plymouth  PL1 3BJ

Please ask for  Helen Wright, Democratic 
Support Officer
T 01752 304022
E helen.wright@plymouth.gov.uk
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy
Published 15 December 2015

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/accesstomeetings
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/


CO-OPERATIVE SCRUTINY BOARD
AGENDA

PART 1 – PUBLIC MEETING

1. APOLOGIES  

To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Co-operative Scrutiny Board 
Members.

2. DECLARATION OF INTEREST  

Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on this 
agenda.

3. CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS  

To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 
forward for urgent consideration.

4. CALL-IN: THE CITY OF PLYMOUTH (TRAFFIC 
REGULATION ORDERS) (AMENDMENT NO. 2014.1636344 
- CENTRAL PARK AVENUE) ORDER 2014 & THE CITY OF 
PLYMOUTH (MOVING TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS) 
(AMENDMENT NO. 2014.1636344 - SUTHERLAND ROAD, 
RESTORMEL ROAD) ORDER 2014  

(Pages 1 - 22)

The Co-operative Scrutiny Board will consider the decision called in by Councillors 
Ricketts, Mrs Pengelly and Ball.

5. EXEMPT BUSINESS  

To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 
1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s) of 
business on the grounds that it/they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended by the Freedom of 
Information Act 2000.

PART II (PRIVATE MEETING)

AGENDA

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE
that under the law, the Board is entitled to consider certain items in private. Members of the 
public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are discussed.

NIL.







Chair’s Briefing Note – 19 November 2014 NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Co-operative Scrutiny Board

Call In – Procedure to be Followed in the Meeting

1. Once the Chair has opened the meeting and any previous business on the agenda been dealt 
with, the Members who called in the decision will be asked to explain why they have done so 
and what they feel should be reviewed.

The Members making the call-in shall be allowed up to 15 minutes in total to 
present their case. It shall be up to them to determine how they wish to use their time, 
they may ask one speaker to speak or share the time among several speakers as they see fit. 

2. 15 minutes shall be allowed to respond on behalf of the decision maker(s). It shall be 
up to them to decide how to use this allocation. The relevant Cabinet Member, or a senior 
officer, may make the presentation or they may divide the time between several speakers as 
they see fit.

3. After each presentation, Members may ask questions to clarify any points made by 
the speakers (although the speakers will not have an opportunity to cross-examine one 
another). 

4. The Board will then discuss the matter. Members may ask further questions of the 
Members making the call in or the decision makers during the debate. The 
Members making the call in and the decision maker will not normally speak during 
the debate, except to answer questions.

5. When the Chair considers that the matter has been debated for a reasonable length of time, 
the decision maker will be offered the opportunity to make any final comments on the matter.  
One of the Members making the call in will also be offered the opportunity to sum 
up.  Each side will be allowed five minutes for this purpose.

6. The matter will then move to the vote –

6.1 The first issue to consider is whether to confirm that the decision should be implemented 
(the decision can then be acted on immediately) –

If Members vote YES at this stage, the call in is ended (the matter will not be 
referred back).

6.2 The second issue to consider is whether the matter is within or outside of the budget –

If the decision is not outside of the budget, Board can decide to –

 support the decision which can then be acted on immediately, or
 send the decision back with its comments to the decision maker (ie 

Cabinet), who will then take a final decision

If the decision is outside the budget, it will go as a recommendation to the next 
ordinary meeting of the Council, along with any comments from the Board.



Chair’s Briefing Note – 22 October 2014

6.3 If Members vote in favour of referring the matter for reconsideration, they must vote on 
the following matters –

Where to refer the matter –

Members must decide whether the decision should be referred back for reconsideration 
directly to the original decision maker (ie Cabinet), or to refer the matter to City Council 
to consider the call in.

The Chair will ask Members to vote in favour of either –

 Refer the matter directly back to the original decision maker (Cabinet)

OR

 Refer to the City Council to consider the call-in

If referred back to the decision maker(s), the Chair will confirm the Board’s comments for the 
referral back to Cabinet.























Version 3 26.11.15 Not protectively marked 

 PLYMOUTH RAIL STATION TO 
CENTRAL PARK

Background paper accompanying the delegation report

1. INTRODUCTION

This report seeks delegated authority to implement amendments to The City of Plymouth 
(Moving Traffic Regulation Orders) (Consolidation) Order 2014 and The City of Plymouth 
(Traffic Regulation and Street Parking Places) (Consolidation) Order 2014 in association with 
the Plymouth Station to Central Park scheme largely identified as part of the Strategic Cycle 
Network www.plymouth.gov.uk/strategiccyclenetwork.pdf

The statutory consultation period ran from August 18, 2014 to September 9, 2014.
Substantial wider consultation on the overall scheme was also carried out from August 4, 2014 
to September 9, 2014. Full details of the statutory and wider consultation can be found in 
‘Plymouth Rail Station to Central Park walking and cycling improvements Consultation Report, 
November 2015’. The consultation report also contains details of the scheme that was 
consulted on. Following the public consultation, there has been a careful consideration of the 
scheme proposals.

2. TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS REQUIRED

The elements of the scheme requiring Traffic Regulation Orders are as follows: 
 To add ‘no entry except cycles’ on Restormel Road 
 To add ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions on parts of Central Park Avenue 

The scheme also includes:
 A raised plateau junction with crossing facilities on Central Park Avenue at the junction 

with Dale Road to slow traffic and help pedestrians and cyclists cross the road and improve 
safety; and

 Two flattop road humps to reduce speeds on Central Park Avenue.

3. REASONS FOR THE REQUIRED TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS

3.1 ‘No Entry except Cycles’ prohibiting vehicles travelling from Sutherland Road into 
Restormel Road

On-site assessments have identified that the number of motor vehicles travelling from 
Sutherland Road into Restormel Road are likely to discourage cyclists on this route which is 
identified as part of the strategic cycle network, adopted by Full Council as part of the Local 
Transport Plan in 2011. In addition, the numbers of vehicles are likely to make this route less 
attractive for pedestrians. Counts carried out between 8 AM and 9 AM on April 29, 2014 
indicate that numbers of pedestrians and cyclists using Restormel Road, and therefore 
benefiting from this proposal, are comparable with the numbers of motor vehicle drivers and 
passengers which will be diverted by this prohibition. In addition, it is expected that these 
proposals, as part of a wider programme of measures to enable increased numbers of walking 

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/strategiccyclenetwork.pdf


and cycling trips, will lead to additional cyclists in particular, but also pedestrians, on this route. 
Further counts carried out on September 30 2014 indicate that between 7 AM and 7 PM there 
are substantially more pedestrians and cyclists on this route that will benefit from this element 
of the proposals than car drivers and passengers that will be diverted. The safety and suitability 
of the possible alternative routes for motor vehicles have been considered by the scheme 
designer, and are viewed as acceptable. Impacts on the wider network have also carefully been 
considered.

3.2 No Waiting at Any Time on a length of Central Park Avenue 

Additional parking restrictions removing approximately six informal parking spaces are 
required on Central Park Avenue to enable an island to be installed with a give way feature for 
northbound vehicles, and keep clear markings. The parking restrictions apply to a length of 
Central Park Avenue of approximately 27 m. The island is intended to reduce the speeds of 
vehicles approaching the raised table crossing point at the junction with Dale Road, and so 
improve safety. The provision of features to reduce speeds on the approach to the raised table 
crossing point is in line with Department for Transport design guidance.

3.3 Road humps  

The cycle route which has been consulted on is routed along Central Park Avenue and current 
traffic speeds make this route inappropriate for less confident cyclists; speeds exceeding 30 
mph have been recorded. Less confident cyclists are expected to use the proposed off road 
facility on the west side of Central Park Avenue but will need to cross Central Park Avenue to 
reach this facility. It is anticipated that a proportion of more confident cyclists will continue to 
use the road. 
Through reducing vehicle speeds, road humps can be expected to improve actual and 
perceived safety for pedestrians and cyclists crossing Central Park Avenue and cyclists using 
the carriageway. The proposed raised table at the junction with Dale Road, also classified as a 
road hump and so covered by this decision, is likely to be a key crossing point for cyclists in 
particular, but the measures can be expected to make crossing Central Park Avenue generally 
safer and easier along the affected stretch of road. Younger and older residents and visitors 
and those with mobility and other impairments will especially benefit in this respect.

4. CONSULTATION

Statutory and extensive additional non-statutory consultation, including the delivery of 1500 
leaflets to households in the area, has been carried out. The non-statutory consultation on the 
wider scheme, but including the required Traffic Regulation Orders, ran between August 18 
and September 9. The statutory consultation for the required traffic regulation orders ran 
between August 18 and September 9.  Full details of the consultation process that was 
followed are included in the ‘Plymouth Rail Station to Central Park Walking and Cycling 
improvements Consultation Report, November 2015’.   All responses received have been in 
response to the wider consultation rather than the statutory consultation.

4.1 ‘No Entry except cycles’ 

The ‘No Entry except cycles’ was advertised on street, in the Herald and on the Plymouth City 
Council website on 18th of August, 2014. It was sent to the Councillors of the affected ward 
and statutory consultees on 14th August 2014.



All responses received were in response to the non-statutory wider consultation. The 
responses to this element of the proposals in the wider public consultation are summarised 
below:

Scheme element Support Support with 
amendments

Oppose No clear view 
expressed

No entry sign from Sutherland 
Road onto Restormel Road 
(except for cyclists), which will 
give more space to pedestrians 
and cyclists, reducing conflict 
with motor vehicles

49

(56%)

5

(6%)

33

(38%)
24

4.2 No Waiting at Any Time

The ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions on a length of Central Park Avenue proposal was 
advertised on street, in the Herald and on the PCC website on 18th of August, 2014. It was sent to 
the Councillors of the affected wards and statutory consultees on 14th August 2014.

All responses received were in response to the non-statutory wider consultation. The responses 
to the element of the proposals in the wider public consultation are summarised below:

Scheme element Support Support with 
amendments

Oppose No clear 
view 

expressed

Flat-top road humps and a 
priority give-way feature on 
Central Park Avenue. The 
give-way feature will require 
a short length of double-
yellow lines outside Central 
Park Towers but residents 
permit parking will not be 
affected.

42
(49%)

12
(14%)

32
(37%)

25

4.3 Road humps

The road hump proposals were advertised on street, in the Herald and on the PCC website 
on 18th of August 2014. It was sent to the Councillors of the affected ward and statutory 
consultees on 14th August 2014.

All responses received were in response to the non-statutory wider consultation. The road 
humps were included within two elements of the wider public consultation. The responses to 
these two elements are summarised below:



Scheme element Support Support with 
amendments

Oppose No clear 
view 

expressed

Safer and easier crossings 
for pedestrians and cyclists 
with a raised plateau at the 
junction of Dale Road and 
Central Park Avenue to slow 
traffic speed.

50
(62%)

7
(9%)

24
(30%)

30

Flat-top road humps and a 
priority give-way feature on 
Central Park Avenue. The 
give-way feature will require 
a short length of double-
yellow lines outside Central 
Park Towers but residents 
permit parking will not be 
affected.

42
(49%)

12
(14%)

32
(37%)

25

5. RECOMMENDATION

Following consideration of the comments summarised in the consultation report, it is 
recommended to implement:-

1. ‘No entry except cycles’ on Restormel Road.

2. ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions on a length of Central Park Avenue of approximately 27 m.

3. Three new road humps on Central Park Avenue outside house numbers 22 and 23; 10 and  11; and at 
the entrance to the Creative Court depot.



 

  

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
Plymouth City Council – Strategic Cycle Network

 
 

STAGE 1: What is being assessed and by whom? 

What is being assessed - including a brief 

description of aims and objectives? 

This assessment is for the Strategic Cycle Network (SCN). 

 

Plymouth City Council has an aspiration to create on the ground a strategic cycle network linking 

each of the neighbourhoods in Plymouth.  This network will allow cyclists to travel conveniently 

and more safely across the city.  The works on the ground will also seek to make improvements 

for pedestrians and people with mobility impairments. 

 

Plymouth adopted the SCN in December 2009. It was developed by Council officers working 

closely with the Cycle Touring Club, the University of Plymouth, Plymouth Cycle Forum and Velo 

Club Plymouth. The SCN was then incorporated into the Local Transport Plan, adopted 

unanimously by Full Council in April 2011. 

 

It is a city plan detailing the network of routes, cycle paths and lanes that we aim to create within 

the city with a focus on key routes within Plymouth. This will enable us to concentrate its 

investment on encouraging cycling and improving safety. 

  

The network is designed for both experienced and non-experienced cyclists. It does this through 

colour coded routes as follows: 

 

Purple network: The purple network is the suggested route for experienced cyclists. 

Experienced cyclists are generally more able and confident when dealing with traffic. The purple 



 

Page 2 of 7 

STAGE 1: What is being assessed and by whom? 

route is faster and more direct, however in places it will require a higher level of skill to ride 

safely. The route will be developed using mostly on-road cycle provision (e.g. cycle lanes, 

advanced stop lines), although off-road provision may be considered where the time delay is small. 

Green network: The green network is for less experienced and leisure cyclists as well as 

children. The main focus is on safety, allowing for a more leisurely ride and where possible away 

from traffic, apart from on lower speed and quieter roads. 

Combined network: Where the purple and green networks meet the route will be developed 

so that it is suitable for all cyclists. 

 

A copy of the strategic cycle network is available at:- www.plymouth.gov.uk/strategiccyclenetwork  

Responsible Officer Rosemary Starr, Smarter Choices Manager 

Department and Service Strategic Planning and Infrastructure – Place 

Date of Assessment 08.01.15 

 

STAGE 2: Evidence and Impact 

Protected Characteristics 

(Equality Act) 

Evidence and 

information (e.g. data 

and feedback) 

Any adverse impact? Actions Timescale and who is 

responsible? 

Age Plymouth’s SCN and wider 

cycling programme is designed 

to encourage greater levels of 

cycling amongst both 

experienced and less 

experienced cyclists, regardless 

of age. 

 

There is a potential conflict 

between pedestrians and 

cyclists, especially elderly 

pedestrians on shared use 

paths due to the difference in 

speed between cyclists and 

pedestrian. 

Cycle training which teaches 

appropriate behaviour 

towards other users is now 

delivered to 80% of Plymouth 

schoolchildren through 

Bikeability which in some 

schools is complemented by 

Bike It Plus. Adult cycle 

Jim Woffenden ongoing 

 

 

 

 

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/strategiccyclenetwork


 

Page 3 of 7 

STAGE 2: Evidence and Impact 

Protected Characteristics 

(Equality Act) 

Evidence and 

information (e.g. data 

and feedback) 

Any adverse impact? Actions Timescale and who is 

responsible? 

 

 

training is also available.  

 

Our adult cycle training is 

available to members of the 

public including those with 

disabilities, with adaptive 

bikes being available for use 

within Plymouth thus 

allowing cycling to be an 

inclusive activity. 

 

Furthermore Plymouth City 

Council is developing a 

cycling code of conduct with 

the cycling community. 

 

In addition each individual 

scheme on the ground 

includes consideration of 

these conflicts as part of the 

design process and safety 

audit.  Public consultation will 

also be undertaken to help 

identify issues. 

 

 

Continuation of programme 

confirmed until March 2016, Smarter 

Choices Team  

 

 

 

 

Summer 2015, Jim Woffenden 

 

 

 

 

 

Responsibility of individual scheme 

designer 

Disability The 2011 census reports that 

10,042 people are listed as 

disabled or long-term sick. 

 

People with disabilities 

experience may transport 

barriers. For example, some 

streetscapes present obstacles 

for wheelchairs, and indirect 

pedestrian routes can make 

journeys on foot longer than 

they might otherwise be.  

 

Through the delivery of the 

SCN opportunities are taken to 

enhance the facilities for 

pedestrian, cyclists and people 

with mobility impairments.  

 

Delivery of the SCN also 

supports several LTP 3 

objectives including:- 

 “Make walking, cycling and 

public transport the desirable 

choice” 

(2) Improve the quality, extent, 

There is a potential conflict 

between cyclists and people 

with disabilities on shared use 

paths due to the difference in 

speed between cyclists and 

pedestrian. 

 

 



 

Page 4 of 7 

STAGE 2: Evidence and Impact 

Protected Characteristics 

(Equality Act) 

Evidence and 

information (e.g. data 

and feedback) 

Any adverse impact? Actions Timescale and who is 

responsible? 

availability of information and 

physical access of our bus, rail, 

walking and cycling networks so 

they are easy to use. 

“Link communities together” 

(1) Improve access to 

community amenities, leisure 

opportunities and our high 

quality natural environment. 

 

All of which will benefit people 

with disabilities. 

Faith, Religion or Belief The 2011 census reports that:- 

148,917 people in Plymouth are 

Christian, 881 are Buddhist, 567 

are Hindu, 168 are Jewish, 2,078 

are Muslim, 89 are Sikh, 1,198 

are listed as ‘other religion’, 

84,295 have no religion and 

18,191 did not state a religion. 

(Plymouth’s population is 

256,384).  

No negative impact None  

Gender - including marriage, 

pregnancy and maternity 

The delivery of the SCN is in 

accordance with PCC’s values 

i.e. that we are democratic, 

responsible, fair and partners 

and in accordance with our 

equality and diversity 

commitment. The network is 

designed to be accessible to 

No negative impact None  



 

Page 5 of 7 

STAGE 2: Evidence and Impact 

Protected Characteristics 

(Equality Act) 

Evidence and 

information (e.g. data 

and feedback) 

Any adverse impact? Actions Timescale and who is 

responsible? 

everyone regardless of gender. 

Gender Reassignment The delivery of the SCN will 

provide routes which are 

accessible to everyone, 

regardless of gender. 

No negative impact None  

Race The 2011 census reports that:-

238,263 people in Plymouth are 

white British, 153 are Gypsies 

or Travellers, 875 are British 

Indian, 202 British Pakistani, 359 

British Bangladeshi, 1,251 British 

Chinese and 1,219 British 

Other Asian. 1,106 people are 

defined as Black British African, 

343 Caribbean, 229 as other 

Black. The census lists 399 

people in Plymouth as Arab and 

605 as ‘other’. 

 

The delivery of the SCN will 

provide routes which are 

accessible to everyone, 

regardless of race. 

No negative impact None  

Sexual Orientation -including Civil 

Partnership 

The delivery of the SCN will 

provide routes which are 

accessible to everyone, 

regardless of sexual orientation. 

No negative impact None  



 

Page 6 of 7 

 

STAGE 3: Are there any implications for the following? If so, please record ‘Actions’ to be taken 

Local Priorities  Implications Timescale and who is responsible? 

Reduce the inequality gap, 

particularly in health between 

communities.  

One of the drivers of the health inequality gap is lower levels of 

physical activity.  Improving opportunities for cycling whilst 

making pedestrian improvements will increase physical activity so 

helping to improve health. 

 

Only 18.6% of the adult population of Plymouth exercises for 30 

minutes three times a week making the city one of the lowest 

exercising areas in the South West. The Chief Medical Officer 

identifies walking and cycling as easy ways to increase exercise.1   

Ongoing during the delivery of the Strategic Cycle Network.  

 

This action is the responsibility of the Smarter Choices Team and 

the scheme designer 

Good relations between different 

communities (community 

cohesion). 

Delivery of the SCN routes will physically improve the 

connections between communities. In addition, as part of the 

delivery of the SCN consultation will be undertaken on the 

routes proposed thus actively engaging the community. 

Ongoing during the delivery of the Strategic Cycle Network.  

 

This action is the responsibility of the Smarter Choices Team and 

the scheme designer 

Human Rights No negative implications are expected from the delivery of the 

SCN, alongside the wider cycling programme which is designed 

to give people the skills and confidence to make more trips by 

bike. 

 

 

STAGE 4: Publication 

Assistant Director approving EIA.  

 

Date 08.01.15 

                                            
1 Local Transport Plan 2011–26, Plymouth City Council, April 2011 


	Agenda
	4 CALL-IN: THE CITY OF PLYMOUTH (TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS) (AMENDMENT No. 2014.1636344 - CENTRAL PARK AVENUE) ORDER 2014 & THE CITY OF PLYMOUTH (MOVING TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS) (AMENDMENT No. 2014.1636344 - SUTHERLAND ROAD, RESTORMEL ROAD) ORDER 2014
	Call In Form Cycle Scheme - Signed Copy
	Signed executive decision form
	briefing report station to central park final 151125
	EIA


